# LICENSING COMMITTEE

# (DRAFT) MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 FEBRUARY 2009

Councillors: Tony Linden (Chairman) (P), Andrew Rowles (AP), Geoff Findlay (P),

Keith Woodhams (AP), Jeff Beck (P), Quentin Webb (P), Owen Jeffery (AP), Paul Bryant (P), Adrian Edwards (AP), Gwen Mason (P), Peter Argyle (A),

Billy Drummond (P), Manohar Gopal (P), Mollie Lock (P)

### **PARTI**

# 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting were received on behalf of Councillors Andrew Rowles, Keith Woodhams, Owen Jeffery and Adrian Edwards.

# 2. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2009 were approved as a true and correct record. One amendment was noted on page 5: . . . 'Mr Cook *provided* his evidence . . .' changed to 'Mr Cook *provided* his evidence . . .'

# 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received.

#### 4. PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING

Brian Leahy (Senior Licensing Officer) summarised the report which had been circulated to decide whether to agree to licence tuk-tuks as private hire vehicles. The report had previously been presented to the Committee although it was requested that officers undertook more research into the vehicles in order to inform the decision whether to agree a licence.

It was noted that tuk-tuks have to comply with the same safety criteria of any other licensed vehicle and that officers had no concerns on the safety aspect of the vehicles. It was noted that the issue to consider was that if a licence was granted then the vehicle could be used by the company for any private hire use within the restrictions of the licence, if any were imposed. It was noted that there had been a lot of bad press about tuk-tuks in the various media – although in reality this was actually referring to bajaj – which are a smaller, slower vehicles than tuk-tuks.

It should be noted however that if proved to be safe, a licence could be granted but with conditions applied. It was recommended that officers could investigate likely conditions that the Committee would like to see applied to a licence and to bring back to a small working party of the Committee to agree.

Standing orders was suspended whilst the Committee went to the front of the buildings to look at the tuk-tuk for which the licence was being requested and to allow committee members to question the applicant.

- If the vehicle can carry 6 adults, what is the weight limit? Members could set any weight limit they wished as part of the conditions of licence.
- Could distances from (e.g.)central Newbury be restricted as part of the conditions? A licence means the vehicle can travel anywhere in the UK although for example a restriction on travelling outside of West Berkshire could be set as part of the conditions.
- How does this affect access for disabled passengers? There is no legal requirement for a private hire vehicle to have disabled access.

#### LICENSING COMMITTEE - 23 FEBRUARY 2009 - MINUTES

- Could the tuk-tuk ply for trade at a taxi rank? The vehicle would not be licensed as a
  hackney carriage and therefore could only accept passengers who had pre-booked.
- What was the speed of the tuk-tuk? The vehicle could do 60 mph comfortably.
- Is 'tuk-tuk' a generic term so a licence could therefore incorporate a bajaj? The conditions on the licence could specify the safety standards to which the vehicle must conform to. The licence could also specify the manufacturer of the vehicle.

Representatives of the 'trade' – i.e. West Berkshire Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators' Association – raised no objections to the application.

The applicant asked that no restrictions be placed on taking the vehicle outside of West Berkshire. They lived in Great Shefford – i.e. on the border of the district – and felt this would curtail their business.

Standing orders were resumed.

**Resolved that** the recommendation to agree to licence tuk-tuks as private hire vehicles subject to special conditions was agreed unanimously. It was agreed not to restrict the use of the vehicle to West Berkshire. Brian Leahy would write the Council's conditions and would consult with the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and the Executive member for Licensing for their delegated approval.

#### 5. HACKNEY CARRIAGE TARIFF 2008/9

Brian Leahy (Senior Licensing Officer) outlined the paper asking the Committee to consider a request from the trade for a further increase in fares for licensed hackney carriages operating in the district for the financial year 09/10 or to allow the 50 pence fuel supplement to remain.

There had been a special request from the trade in July 08 to allow a 50 pence increase in fares because of the cost of fuel. There was a general acceptance from the trade at that time that if the 50 pence remained then there would be no application for a percentage increase at the start of the new year.

Cabco's view (attached in appendix A) that the 50 pence surcharge should remain, rather than requesting a percentage increase. The West Berkshire Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators' Association held the same view (Appendix B). If the Committee were minded to remove the 50 pence surcharge and opt for a percentage increase then appendix B offered a view as to how this could be set.

Standing orders were suspended to allow the trade to contribute to the discussion and answer any queries members may have.

• Did the Committee agree to put in place a sliding scale to accommodate subsequent changes in fuel prices? This option had not been followed through because of the complexity of the formulae to calculate it. Also, it was noted that any changes in the fare structure presented a real cost to the Council of at least £500 to print revised tariff cards and to advertise the fare changes – as the Council is statutorily obliged to do.

Rodney Nemeth (representing both Cabco and the West Berkshire Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators' Association) noted that it was the view of the trade to keep the 50 pence surcharge that had already been applied. This was because (a) customers were now used to the tariff, (b) the £2.50 flag compares favourably with neighbouring districts, (c) as does the 1 mile rate. He noted that not one complaint had been received after the 50 pence increase last year and that the increase had allowed radio companies to reduce fares by abolishing the booking fee (referred to in appendix A). A change in the fare structure would cost the trade approximately £3,000 as a result of new chips needing to be fitted into the cars.

Standing orders were resumed.

**Resolved that** the 50 pence surcharge remain rather than ask for a percentage increase in 09/10 fares. This was agreed unanimously.

#### LICENSING COMMITTEE - 23 FEBRUARY 2009 - MINUTES

# 6. DISABLED TAXI GROUP

The Parliamentary Under Secretary for Transport has announced that a consultation document has been published on the Disability Discrimination Act and Taxis.

Interested parties, to include local authorities and taxi owners are asked to forward comments on the document by 24th April 2009.

Brian Leahy explained to members that a paper outlining proposals for change in disabled access conditions for taxis had been shelved in the light of the consultation. Members were urged to forward comments / proposals to Brian Leahy for inclusion into a formal response to the document on behalf of the Council's Licensing Committee / team. It is understood that the Council's Access Officer will also be commenting, albeit outside of the Council's licensing remit.

Brian Leahy is to provide further information to members,

# 7. PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION

The Chair outlined the paper to discuss proposed changes to the Council's constitution to allow applications for review of premises licences under s52(2) / club premises certificates under s88(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 to be delegated to Licensing Sub-committees to determine.

**Resolved that** the recommendation that licensing officers take forward a recommendation to the Council's Governance and Audit Committee and then to full Council that the constitution be amended.

CHAIRMAN

Date of Signature:

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 p.m. and closed at 7:30 p.m.)